ANCHOR

Meeting Minutes
Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
To:  Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup Date: February 22, 2024

From: Larissa Rohrbach, ATS Coordinator, Anchor QEA

Re: Final Minutes of the February 22, 2024, Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting

The Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup (ATS) meeting was held virtually on February 22, 2024,
from 9:00 a.m. to 12:00 p.m. Attendees are listed in Section IV of these meeting minutes.

Action Item Summary

e Kale Bentley to develop a Lower River Adult Coho Monitoring Memo for discussion with ATS
in April or May

e Chris Karchesky to develop draft 2024 Yale Habitat Preparation Plan (HPP) for ATS to begin
discussing in March

e PacifiCorp to develop template ATS Charter for discussion and development

e Kale Bentley to receive steelhead simulation results and share with Erik Leko and Jeremiah
Doyle

Agreements or Recommendations

¢ None

Review ltems
e Revised 2024 AOP and Data Responsibilities

Finalized Documents
e None
.  Welcome (Lesko)

A.  Review Agenda

Erik Lesko added multiple items to the adgenda and reviewed with the ATS. Lesko added a
discussion of the fall 2024 monitoring implementation process and timeline to the adult Coho



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 2

Salmon discussion and brood collection discussion to the update sections. No further updates were
requested.

Il. ATS Meeting Topics

A. Adult Coho in 2024 (Lesko)

Coho Salmon Broodstock Transition Implementation Status (Glaser/Huff)

Anja Huff stated that she set a meeting with PacifiCorp on March 1 to discuss the implementation of
the Coho Salmon Transition Plan (Transition Plan). Huff will send PacifiCorp an outline, which
provides an overview of what is needed to implement the Transition Plan. Erik Lesko asked when he
could expect to receive the outline. Huff said it would be complete and sent the following day.

Bryce Glaser added that the document will outline the current challenges for implementation and the
Washington State Department of Fish and Wildlife (WDFW) preferred alternatives. The document was
intended to be a starting point for discussion with PacifiCorp.

Upstream Supplementation (Karchesky)

Chris Karchesky said that he would like to begin Coho Salmon upstream supplementation
discussions early. He reminded the ATS that PacifiCorp had attempted to move additional Coho
Salmon upstream last year to assist in the development of the integrated population model (IPM), by
transporting more fish than the current annual goal (based on EDT-estimated carrying capacity) for
upstream transport of 9,000 adults. Due weather conditions at the end of the season, only 8,400 fish
were transported upstream total, which was short of the original 9,000-fish target plus the additional
2,000. Although it was unfortunate that more fish were not transported in 2023, Karchesky
mentioned having fewer fish transported is not necessarily a bad thing either for the IPM model.
Karchesky reminded the group that the intention was to transport an additional 5,000 adult in 2024
(for a total of 14,000), and he would like to begin discussions early about this target and come to a
recommendation for the Aquatic Coordination Committee (ACC) by June.

Kale Bentley said a lot of time was spent discussing the target goals for last year, and he wondered
how the ATS should best prepare for 2024. Karchesky said he could update the transport curve based
on original 9,000-fish target and with additional fish to discuss with the ATS. Jeramiah Doyle said he
would put this topic on the Bull Trout Recovery Group meeting agenda and would follow up with
Karchesky about the curve adjustments. Karchesky said that would be helpful because there was
discussion last year about effects to Bull Trout.



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 3

Erik Lesko asked whether the ACC agreed to move fish for only 1 year or for multiple years.
Karchesky reminded the ATS there were discussions with United States Geologic Survey about the
IPM and that although 9,000 fish had been moved upstream consistently for years, the model
needed variability to increase accuracy. Karchesky said that due to the Transition Plan, populations
could be lean in the upcoming years, and it was time sensitive to move more fish upstream using the
potentially higher returns over the next few years. The initial suggested target for 2023 was to move
an extra 4,000 to 5,000 fish upstream, but it was agreed upon to move 2,000 in addition to the
9,000-fish target. Due to the truncation of the run in 2023, the target 9,000 fish was not hit.

2024 Yale Habitat Preparation Plan (Karchesky)

Erik Lesko mentioned that Chris Karchesky would be taking the lead for developing updating the
Yale HPP this this coming year. Bryce Glaser said that Josua Holowatz had concerns, dependent on
when the new constructed fish passage facility comes online, that progeny from adults moved
upstream for the Yale HPP will be captured and transported downstream. He wanted to ensure the
ATS thought ahead about the composition of adults transported upstream as part of the Yale HPP
(hatchery and natural origin). Karchesky agreed it would be good to discuss further which fish are
being transported upstream, especially with the anticipated additional Coho Salmon transported
above Swift Dam in 2024. Karchesky said he would send out a draft of the updated Yale HPP for 2024
by the March 28 meeting.

Glaser said there is language that discusses the concern for population composition in the current
Yale HPP. He mentioned the forecast for next fall had been released, and the early returns are
projected to be slightly lower than average, although the late return forecast was slightly elevated.
He said tributary specific information would be released soon. Karchesky asked whether that will be
available by next month. Glaser was unsure.

Karchesky will take last year's Yale HPP and adjust develop a template for the 2024 Yale HPP to
review at the March ATS meeting. He said this will help facilitate conversation about 2024 target
goals for upstream Coho Salmon. Glaser reminded the ATS that early Coho Salmon returns came in
strong, and the late returns came in low in 2023. If the new target goal is set early, there would be a
higher likelihood of achieving the goal. Karchesky was hopeful to have Yale HPP and transport
decisions finalized by June. Lesko agreed that the ATS should plan to finalize by June for ACC
approval in July.

Fall 2024 Monitoring and Implementation Plan (Process and Timeline)

Erik Lesko said Kale Bentley is drafting a memorandum summarizing current Coho Salmon
monitoring strategies performed by Meridian Environmental Inc. (Meridian), including abundance



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 4

estimates, carcass placements, and tagging. Bentley will bring the memorandum to the ATS to
initiate discussion of proposed modifications for monitoring strategies this fall. Bentley said the
original hope was to produce this memorandum last year, but it was never finished. Dring that time,
some quick changes were identified. Some of these changes are simple field adjustments, and others
are related to analysis processes. Bentley believed developing the memorandum would be helpful for
all members of the ATS. He said if the memorandum is not completed by late spring, the ATS should
begin discussion about this topic without it. Bentley requested a check-in be added to the agenda
for April and the addition of a discussion topic for the May ATS meeting.

Bentley asked how contracting with Meridian is handled and if discussions should start earlier or how
that could potentially affect contracting. Lesko said that Meridian is currently under contract to
conduct the Coho Salmon surveys in the fall of 2024, but he added that change orders remain an
option if they are justified.

B.  Aquatic Technical Subcommittee Charter (Lesko)

Erik Lesko presented the Lewis Fish Passage Subgroup (FPS) charter that was developed in 2022. He
said PacifiCorp would put together a draft that follows this template, outlining the scope, meetings,
and general processes of the ATS. Lesko stated that most of the information related to process is
included in Ground Rules, currently being approved by the Terrestrial Coordination Committee.
Lesko pointed out that the ATS may want to formalize the process for making recommendations to
the ACC. He noted that the ATS is a generally informal group, but developing a charter provides the
opportunity to outline a decision-making process if the ATS would like. He reminded the ATS that
developing the charter document was not time sensitive, but to be consistent with the new Ground
Rules guidance, the ATS should develop a charter for ACC consideration in the coming months.
Lesko said he would distribute a proposed ATS charter prior to the April ATS meeting.

Bryce Glaser said he was supportive of using the FPS charter as a template, and agreed the updated
Ground Rules would be helpful for developing an ATS-specific charter. He said the ACC could also
provide information on which decisions at the subcommittee level need to be formal. He reminded
the ATS that subcommittees are not a decision-making body, but some in-season decisions have
been delegated to the ATS in the past. He said it would be helpful to have framework to document
the in-season decisions. Glaser added that the membership list needs to be updated. Lesko said the
membership list would be updated as a link to the PacifiCorp website so membership changes could
be more easily adjusted and agreed that there are some decisions made in-season by the ATS that
should be documented.



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 5

C. Hatchery Practices and Pathology (Hatchery and Fish Health Staff)

Mike Chamberlain said operations were busy at Lewis. Spring Chinook Salmon had all been released,
early return Coho Salmon had been moved out of incubation, and lake Coho Salmon were in
incubation. Operations had a couple of issues that were being worked on. The degassing tower valve
was broken and should be assessed and fixed the following week. The DSI pump went down, and
staff were working to get it back online. The blow-off compressor failed and was replaced, and
hazard tree work was ongoing. All fish culture looked good.

Erik Lesko asked Chamberlain whether spilling and the degassing tower had been discussed. He
asked what the critical window was if incubation was a concern. Chamberlain said that the fry in the
ponds could be an issue. Chamberlain reminded the ATS that the fish are vulnerable to heavy
saturation in the ponds.

The pipeline, which is a 36-inch pipe, may need to be shutdown to replace the value. Chamberlain
said that there is a short window, from mid-April to first week of May, where water could be run
down the hill to feed the ponds, but it is still vulnerable to a spill. Chamberlian said that the pipe
could likely be fixed within that window. Lesko stated that he would get an update from scheduling,
but the snowpack was less than average.

Kevin Young said Merwin was currently collecting winter steelhead for the conservation program.
Collection had been slow and behind on collection goals by two females, with a total of four males
and two females. Two of the four summer steelhead tanks had begun ponding at Merwin. Young
said summer steelhead will be moved to net pens on March 6.

Young said Speelyai ponded spring Chinook Salmon and kokanee and was preparing to start on
March 4 for spring Chinook Salmon, and tagging will follow in April. Lesko presented an overview of
the scheduled target collection.

D. Updates

Genetics Plan (Lesko)

Erik Lesko provided an update on the genetics meeting and reinitiated conversations about
developing Strategy G, which has been an ongoing process. Priority for this work was identified at
the January ATS meeting. He reminded the ATS that the genetics group consists of geneticists from
National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration, Cramer Fish Sciences, and WDFW. Lesko said the
group reconvened yesterday to discuss next steps and identify priorities. He said the meeting was
productive, and they developed a more detailed list of next steps. One of those steps is to finalize
Strategy G, which has been reviewed by WDFW and Cramer Fish Sciences and has a number of



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 6

comments incorporated. A few issues remain that still need further discussion, but overall, the
strategy is nearing a final review draft for the ATS to review. The genetics group also discussed the
need to assess data gaps and plan for future sampling needs. Lesko said the group will continue to
meet monthly until Strategy G is finalized.

Kale Bentley said that the general knowledge of where samples need to be collected is known. The
majority of the data gaps are from tributaries downstream of Merwin Dam. The question has been
who is responsible for collecting those samples, including planning and implementation. Bentley was
concerned about resolving the responsible-party discussion with enough time to not miss another
season of sampling. He mentioned that Coho Salmon can be collected throughout the year, but
steelhead should ideally be collected in the summer as juveniles, and multiple years of collection
data is needed.

Marc Johnson added that the genetics meeting was very productive, especially in relation to the
scope of samples needed to complete the baseline assessment. There seemed to be agreement that
more samples were needed outside of the Lewis River because these samples can identify fish
collected in the future that are not part of the program. He said that as planning moves forward,
there will also been a need for fish collection even if they are not analyzed immediately.

Bentley highlighted that there is a difference between collecting outside Lewis and collecting fish
included in Lewis populations outside of the Lewis River. He said Coho Salmon that compose the
Lewis population need to be collected from representative areas.

Lesko said the responsibility discussion should not preclude the development of a Strategy G. He
said the final strategy should be developed to answer the specific key questions in the H&S Plan.
Once this is completed, a determination of who is responsible should occur, which may need to go
to the ACC for resolution.

Lesko added that the generic strategy goal was to determine effects of hatchery changes to fish
populations. The genetics strategy should also evaluate outcome goals from the Settlement
Agreement and how to measure the success of creating a self-sustaining population. Lesko
emphasized that the assessments made by the genetics group could affect hatchery workings.

Steelhead Abundance and Composition Monitoring (Lesko/Dovyle)

Erik Lesko said that hook-and-line sampling had begun and presented an updated collection table.
Two sampling events had been completed. Jeremiah Doyle updated the ATS that three fish have
been caught; one was likely a Chambers fish (adipose clip) and was released without a passive
integrated transponder (PIT) tag. Kale Bentley asked why the fish was not tagged. Doyle said the plan
did not include tagging Chambers fish. Bentley said Chambers fish would count for evaluating



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 7

proportion of hatchery-origin spawners (pHOS), and previously the sampling time frame has not
lined up for the incidental catch of Chambers fish before. He suggested tagging Chambers fish
because PIT tags are inexpensive, and the data for Chambers fish could be filtered out in the data
evaluation stage. Doyle agreed that Chambers fish would be tagged if caught going forward. Bentley
suggest this topic should be added to the list of questions to be discussed the end of the season.
Although the Chambers fish program is being phased out, fish will continue to return after the final
release of Chamber’s smolts in April 2024.

Lesko said that the Chambers adult released was classified as a kelt, and he was not certain whether
kelts were used by the multi-state model to estimate pHOS. Bentley that mentioned kelts will be
observed for the rest of the season. Lesko clarified that all maiden adult captures (including mature
residuals and regardless of origin or condition) will be PIT tagged and released.

Bentley asked how accurate the estimated effort hours had been during implementation and
whether the team could make it to all sites in one day as planned. Doyle said there would be
deviations to the plan in the next week. The team would be adding an additional drift (for a total of
three) at each site. Doyle said they have been able to sample every site twice within about 4.5 hours.
With the additional drift for each site, total sampling time to complete all sites will increase to
around 6.5 to 7 hours. Doyle said timing may be adjusted as the effort continues and more fish are
caught and as the river flow slows. Bentley asked whether the team was going out on a consistent
day. Doyle said the team is monitoring on Tuesdays or Thursdays, depending on conditions.

Bentley mentioned that he checked in with John Best and he was still working on building the
steelhead simulation for analysis. He would set up suite of scenarios with different run sizes and
capture efficiencies. Once he has initial results, he will share with Lesko and Doyle. Bentley said the
initial results will inform the target goal of 53 fish and whether this is enough to meet monitoring
objectives. Lesko asked when they should expect results, and Bentley said by middle of next week.

lll. ATS Administration (Maas)

A. Review Next Meeting Topics (Maas)

The following topics will be discussed in the next meeting:

e Adult Coho Salmon 2024 (broodstock, upstream transport, HPP, and monitoring and
implementation)

e Revised 2024 AOP and Data Responsibilities

e ATS Charter

e Genetic Plan

e Steelhead abundance and monitoring update



Lewis River Aquatic Technical Subgroup
Meeting Date: February 22, 2024
Document Date: February 29, 2024
Page 8

B. Confirm Next Meeting (March 28) In-Person, Region 5 Headquarters (Maas)

The March 28, 2024, meeting will be a hybrid meeting, with the in-person attendance held at the
WDFW Region 5 office: 5525 S 11th Street, Ridgefield, Washington 98642.

IV. List of Attendees

Name Affiliation
Nina Maas Anchor QEA
Caitlin Burd Anchor QEA

Chris Karchesky PacifiCorp

Erik Lesko PacifiCorp

Jeremiah Doyle PacifiCorp
Kathryn Blair NMEFS
Emi Melton NMES
Marc Johnson NMES
Kale Bentley WDFW
Bryce Glaser WDFW
Anja Huff WDFW
Kevin Young WDFW
Aaron Roberts WDFW
Mike Chamberlain WDFW

Keely Murdoch Yakima Nation

Steve Manlow LCFRB




